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October 13, 2006 
 
TO:  All Vendors of Record 
 
FROM: Linda Voghel 
  Office of Legislative Management 
   
RE:  Request for Proposal for State Capitol Cooling Towers Replacement 
  Responses to Vendor Questions and Requests for Clarification 
  Consulting Engineering Services Addendum 
 
 
The following responses to vendor questions and requests for clarification are provided to 
those vendors of record who have received the Connecticut General Assembly’s RFP for 
the State Capitol Cooling Towers Replacement.  
 
Please note that the deadline for receipt of all proposals is Thursday, October 19, 2006 at 
5:00 p.m. in the Office of Legislative Management, Room 5100 Legislative Office 
Building, Hartford, Connecticut. 
 
Thank you for your interest. 
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JOINT COMMITTEE ON LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT 

 
QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES  

 
October 13, 2006 

 
 
1. Are their drawings for this project?  

 
Yes, the drawings request form included in the RFP must be completed and submitted to the 
Office of Legislative Management along with the $100 deposit and a completed W-9 form to 
obtain the drawings.  Deposits will be returned to vendors upon award of the contract and 
receipt of the drawings from vendors. 
 

2. Can you provide the names of the vendors who attended the pre-bid meeting and walk-
through?  
 
Yes, they are as follows: 

 
Environmental Services Corporation 
Titan Mechanical 
Harrington Engineering Company 
Guardian Services 
Connecticut Boiler Repair 
Barry Associates, Inc. 
Stewart Mechanical 
J.H. LaPierre Junior and Son Electrical Contractor 

 
3. Are there are bond requirements for this project ?  

 
Yes, a bid bond is required to be provided with the proposal as described in section 4.1 of the 
request for proposal. Once the contract is awarded, the contractor must provide a 
performance bond as well as a labor and materials bond as specified in section 4.1 and 4.3.  
 
Bid Bond: The proposer shall submit a bid bond in the amount of ten percent (10%) of the 
total proposed contract cost along with the proposal. Failure to furnish a bid bond in the 
proper form and amount with the proposal will be cause for rejection of the proposal. A bid 
bond shall be in the form of a firm commitment as follows: a bid bond on a surety company 
licensed in the State of Connecticut; a postal money order; certified check; or cashier’s 
check. Checks shall be made payable to “The Joint Committee on Legislative Management.” 
Bid guarantees other than bid bonds will be returned (a) to unsuccessful proposers as soon as 
practical after the opening of the proposal, and (b) to the successful proposer upon execution 
of such further contractual documents and bonds as may be required by the proposal. A letter 
of credit cannot be substituted for a bid bond.  
 
Performance Bond: Once the contract is awarded, a performance bond for the total amount of 
the contract award must be provided by the selected vendor. The proposer to whom the award 
is made shall furnish a performance bond for the protection of the CGA in accordance with 
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Section 49-41(b) of the Connecticut General Statutes in an amount equal to the total proposal 
amount within fifteen (15) days of notification of award and prior to the execution of the 
contract; 
 
Labor and Materials Bond. The proposer to whom the contract award is made shall furnish a 
labor and materials bond for the protection of the CGA in accordance with Section 49-41(a) 
of the Connecticut General Statutes in an amount equal to the total proposal amount within 
fifteen (15) days of notification of award and prior to the execution of the contract; 
 

4. Is there a listing of what is to be submitted with the proposals?  
 
Section two and four of the request for proposal includes a list of required elements that shall 
be included in all proposals. Any proposal not including these elements is subject to 
disqualification.   

5. Are we to submit a principal’s form with the proposal and by email? 
 
Yes. Please note that proposals will not be considered without the principal’s form 
submitted both in the proposal and by email.   

6. Shall proposals include the gift affidavit and the campaign contribution form?  
 
Yes. Please note that proposals will not be considered without a completed gift affidavit 
and the campaign contribution form.  

 
7. Are there any specifications for the sand blasting, priming and painting of the steel 

located in the cooling tower bunker? 
 

See attached Addendum #1 from Consulting Engineering Services. 
 
8. Is the dry cooler mentioned in the technical specifications, page 15010-3 section 1.5,  

still required, and if so what should the capacity be? 
 

The dry cooler noted in the specifications will not be required. At least one of the 
closed loop pumps is to remain in operation at all times. There is a bypass valve in 
the boiler room to allow the cooling towers to be disconnected from the loop for 
their replacement.  

 
9. Is the completion date of December 31, 2006 flexible (date could be unrealistic due to  
      equipment delivery)? 
 
      The completion date is to be December 31, 2006 or as soon after December 31, 2006  
      that equipment delivery and scheduling will allow. 
 
10. Is there an estimated budget for this project? 
 
      There was a preliminary budget for the project, but it was an opinion only. 
11.   What type of epoxy paint is specified? 
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 See attached Addendum #1 from Consulting Engineering Services. 
 
12.   What color is the steel being painted? 
 
 Prior to painting the steel, the awarded vendor must submit standard color 

selections to the Office of Legislative Management for approval. 
  
13.   Is there a thickness requirement for the epoxy paint on the steel? 
 

See attached Addendum #1 from Consulting Engineering Services. 
 
14. Is it the intent of this project that all steel to be sandblasted be removed from the 

site to avoid hazardous materials environmental issues? 
 

This is a means and method issue; the contractor shall evaluate and provide the 
best process to complete the task. 

 
15.    Are the areas within the boiler room, building ceiling area, and cooling tower 

bunker asbestos-free? 
 
 The boiler room, building ceiling area, and cooling tower bunker are all believed to 

be asbestos-free. Upon request, the Office of legislative Management will test any 
suspect material found. 

 
16.    Is it the intent of the project to reuse the existing 2 ½” conduit already in place to 

feed one new pump and add one new 3” conduit for the second pump, although 
the drawings show two new 3” conduits?  The drawing plan E-1 and the notes 
seem to contradict themselves. 

 
Provide two new 3” conduits. 

 
17.   Will there be an interface with the Andover Control System in the State Capitol 

building? 
 

Yes, the new cooling towers are to be connected to the existing Andover Control 
System.  

 
18. Is it possible for vendors to come in after the pre-bid meeting and walk-through to 

re-visit the site? 
 
 Yes, contact information is in the Request for Proposal. 
 
19. Please provide information as to how vendors should deal with going through 

three to four foot brick walls in the State Capitol basement.  This is not shown on 
the drawings. 
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This is a means and method issue; the contractor shall evaluate and provide the 
best process to complete the task.   

 
20. What access do vendors have to get materials into the State Capitol building? 
 
 Materials can be brought into the Legislative Office Building via the Loading Dock 

and then into the State Capitol through the underground connecting oncourse or 
directly into the State Capitol on the West side up the Handicap Ramp and then 
brought to the basement in one of the elevators. 

 
21. Will the desk in the pump area in the basement remain? 
 
 The desk will be moved as required to allow for the installation of disconnect 

switches, etc. 
 
22. Will vendors have access to the Capitol building and grounds after hours? 
 
 Yes, work can be completed during normal working hours or off hours and on 

weekends. Off hour and weekend work will need to be scheduled with the Office 
of Legislative Management and the State Capitol Police. 

 
23. Can equipment be rolled through the first floor of the Capitol? 
 
 Yes, but the floors will need to be protected from damage. 
 
24. Can work be done during normal building operating hours? 
 
 Yes (see question 22 above). 
 
25. What is the size of the existing pump? 
 

Existing condenser pumps are 25 HP. 
 
26. What is the time frame during which the cooling towers are shut down and 

brought back up? 
 
 The cooling towers are normally shut down the end of October and restarted the 

beginning of April. 
 
27. Please clarify whether the piping in the cooling towers is to be replaced or 

reinstalled?  Should the heat trace be replaced? Should the insulation be replaced? 
 

Bunker piping is to be replaced.  Heat trace shall be reinstalled in working order.  
Insulation is to be removed and replaced with equal. 
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28. What purpose do the isolation valves serve? 
 

The valves allow the lines to and from the cooling towers to be bypasses while still 
allowing the condenser water system to supply heating water to the Heat Pump 
system in the heating season. 

 
29. Do ceiling tiles need to be replaced at the end of the day if work is still being 

conducted in the same space the following day? 
 
 Ceiling tiles do not need to be replaced each day in areas where work is still being 

conducted.  
 
30. Can conduit work be conducted in the State Capitol basement during normal 

working hours? 
 
 Yes, although the corridors need to remain passable. 
 
31. What time can core drilling be done? 
 
 Core drilling should be scheduled for early in the morning 7:00 to 9:00 a.m., after 

normal working hours or on weekends.  
 
32. Please confirm the size of the existing pump.  Is the new pump the same size? 
 

Existing Condenser pumps are 25HP; new Condenser pumps are 50HP; Sump 
pumps remain the same, 2HP. 
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